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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

TYRIA RICHARDSON, on behalf of herself Civil Action Number:
and all others similarly situated,
CIVIL ACTION
Plaintiffs,
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
AND
-against- DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

NCB MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

Defendants.

Plaintiff TYRIA RICHARDSON (hereinafter, “Plaintiff”), a New York resident, brings
this class action complaint by and through his attorneys, The Law Office of Alan J. Sasson, P.C.,
against Defendant NCB MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC., (hereinafter “Defendant”),
individually and on behalf of a class of all others similarly situated, pursuant to Rule 23 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, based upon information and belief of Plaintiff’s counsel,
except for allegations specifically pertaining to Plaintiff, which are based upon Plaintiff’s
personal knowledge.

INTRODUCTION/PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
1. Congress enacted the FDCPA in 1977 in response to the “abundant evidence of the use of

abusive, deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices by many debt collectors.” 15 U.S.C. §
1692(a). At that time, Congress was concerned that “abusive debt collection practices
contribute to the number of personal bankruptcies, to material instability, to the loss of jobs,
and to invasions of individual privacy.” Id. Congress concluded that “existing laws . . . [we]re
inadequate to protect consumers,” and that “the effective collection of debts” does not require
“misrepresentation or other abusive debt collection practices.” 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692(b) & (c).

2. Congress explained that the purpose of the Act was not only to eliminate abusive debt
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collection practices, but also to “insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using
abusive debt collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged.” Id. § 1692(e). After
determining that the existing consumer protection laws were inadequate, id. 8 1692(b),
Congress gave consumers a private cause of action against debt collectors who fail to comply
with the Act. 1d. 8 1692k.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
. The Court has jurisdiction over this class action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et

seg. and 28 U.S.C. § 2201. If applicable, the Court also has pendent jurisdiction over the
state law claims in this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).
. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2).

NATURE OF THE ACTION

. Plaintiff brings this class action on behalf of a class of New York consumers seeking redress

for Defendant’s illegal practices, in connection with the collection of a debt allegedly owed
by Plaintiff in violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq.
(“FDCPA”™).

Defendant's actions violated § 1692 et seq. of Title 15 of the United States Code, commonly
referred to as the “FDCPA,” which prohibits debt collectors from engaging in abusive,
deceptive and unfair practices.

. Plaintiff is seeking damages, and declaratory and injunctive relief.

PARTIES

. Plaintiff is a natural person and a resident of the State of New York, and is a “Consumer” as
defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692(a)(3).
Defendant is a Pennsylvania corporation with a principal place of business in Trevose,

Pennsylvania.



Case 1:17-cv-01051 Document 1 Filed 02/24/17 Page 3 of 14 PagelD #: 3

10. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a company that uses the mail, telephone, and

facsimile and regularly engages in business the principal purpose of which is to attempt to

collect debts alleged to be due another.

11. Defendant is a “debt collector,” as defined under the FDCPA under 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6).

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

12. Plaintiff brings claims, pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (hereinafter

“FRCP”) Rule 23, individually and on behalf of the following nationwide consumer class

(the “Class™):

All New York consumers from whom Defendant collected or attempted to
collect a Convenience Fee or other charge for paying their alleged debt via
credit card on Defendant’s website in violation of 15 U.S.C. 81692 et seq.

The Class period begins one year to the filing of this Action.

13. The Class satisfies all the requirements of Rule 23 of the FRCP for maintaining a class action:

Upon information and belief, the Class is so numerous that joinder of all
members is impracticable because there are hundreds and/or thousands of
persons whom Defendant has collected, or attempted to collect, a
Convenience Fee or other charge, in exchange for the consumer being allowed
to pay their alleged debt via credit card on Defendant’s website, where such
charges were not authorized by the original agreement between the creditor
and the consumer, in violation of specific provisions of the FDCPA. Plaintiff
is complaining of a standard charge that Defendant apparently charges all
consumers attempting to pay their alleged debts via credit card on Defendant’s
website, even though such charges are not authorized by the original

agreement between the creditor and the consumer. (See Exhibit A, except
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that the undersigned attorney has, in accordance with Fed. R. Civ. P. 5.2
partially redacted the financial account numbers in an effort to protect
Plaintiff’s privacy);

e There are questions of law and fact which are common to the Class and which
predominate over questions affecting any individual Class member. These
common questions of law and fact include, without limitation:

a. Whether Defendant violated various provisions of the FDCPA;
b. Whether Plaintiff and the Class have been injured by Defendant’s conduct;
C. Whether Plaintiff and the Class have sustained damages and are
entitled to restitution as a result of Defendant’s wrongdoing and if
so, what is the proper measure and appropriate statutory formula to
be applied in determining such damages and restitution; and
d. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to declaratory and/or
injunctive relief.

e Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the Class, which all arise from the same
operative facts and are based on the same legal theories.

e Plaintiff has no interest adverse or antagonistic to the interest of the other
members of the Class.

o Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interest of the Class and has
retained experienced and competent attorneys to represent the Class.

e A Class Action is superior to other methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of the claims herein asserted. Plaintiff anticipates that no unusual

difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this class action.
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e A Class Action will permit large numbers of similarly situated persons to
prosecute their common claims in a single forum simultaneously and without the
duplication of effort and expense that numerous individual actions would
engender. Class treatment will also permit the adjudication of relatively small
claims by many Class members who could not otherwise afford to seek legal
redress for the wrongs complained of herein. Absent a Class Action, class
members will continue to suffer losses of statutory protected rights as well as
monetary damages. If Defendant’s conduct is allowed proceed to without remedy
they will continue to reap and retain the proceeds of their ill-gotten gains.

e Defendant has acted on grounds generally applicable to the entire Class,
thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding
declaratory relief with respect to the Class as a whole.

ALLEGATIONS OF FACT

14. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs

numbered “1” through “13” herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set
forth at length herein.

15. Some time prior to August 16, 2016, an obligation was allegedly incurred by Plaintiff to
Webbank.

16. The Webbank obligation arose out of a transaction in which money, property, insurance or
services, which are the subject of the transaction, are primarily for personal, family or
household purposes.

17. The alleged Webbank obligation is a “debt” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5).

18. Webbank is a “creditor” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(4).

19. Defendant contends that the alleged Webbank debt is past due.
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Defendant collects and attempts to collect debts incurred or alleged to have been incurred for
personal, family or household purposes on behalf of creditors using the United States Postal
Services, telephone and internet.

At a time known only by Defendant, Webbank, directly or through an intermediary,
contracted Defendant to collect its debt.

Defendant is a "debt collector” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6).

In its effort to collect on the alleged debt, Defendant contacted Plaintiff by written
correspondence on December 19, 2016. See Exhibit A.

Defendant’s written correspondence to Plaintiff is a “communication” as defined by 15
U.S.C. 81692a(2).

While the debt indicates a balance of $2,051.32 “as of 8-16-2016" it fails to state whether
that balance is static or dynamic in violation of this Circuit’s case law.

15 U.S.C. § 1692g provides that within five days after the initial communication with a
consumer in connection with the collection of any debt, a debt collector shall, unless the
information is contained in the initial communication or the consumer has paid the debt, send
the consumer a written notice containing certain enumerated information.

One such requirement is that the debt collector provides “the amount of the debt.” 15 U.S.C.
§1692¢g(a)(1).

The above statements would leave the least sophisticated consumer unsure as to whether
additional fees would accrue, as Defendant only provides Plaintiff with its Current Balance,
“as of 08-16-2016.”

Defendant’s actions as described herein are part of a pattern and practice used to collect debts.

As set forth in the following Counts Defendant violated the FDCPA.
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First Count
Violation of 15 U.S.C. §1692g
Amount of Debt

Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered “1” through “30” herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set
forth at length herein.

15 U.S.C. § 1692g provides that within five days after the initial communication with a
consumer in connection with the collection of any debt, a debt collector shall, unless the
information is contained in the initial communication or the consumer has paid the debt, send
the consumer a written notice containing certain enumerated information.

One such requirement is that the debt collector provides “the amount of the debt.” 15 U.S.C.
§1692¢g(a)(1).

A debt collector has the obligation not just to convey the amount of the debt, but to convey
such clearly.

15 U.S.C. § 16929 requires debt collectors to inform debtors of their account balance and to
disclose whether the balance may increase due to interest and fees. Avila v. Riexinger
Associates, LLC, 817 F.3d 72, 76 (2d Cir. 2016).

Defendant’s collection letter violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢g by failing to include the safe harbor
language set out in Avila, 817 F.3d at 76.

An unsophisticated consumer would be left uncertain by the said letter as to whether the said
account was accruing interest and/or fees or not.

Pursuant to section 5001 of New York Civil Practice Law and Rules, a creditor shall recover
prejudgment interest "upon a sum awarded because of a breach of performance of a
contract.” N.Y. C.P.L.R. § 5001(a); see also Rhodes v. Davis, 628 Fed. Appx. 787, 794 (2

Cir. 2015). (Under New York Law, "[i]nterest is generally mandatory "upon a sum awarded
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because of a breach of performance of a contract . . . ." (citing 1d. 85001(a))).

Section 5004 sets the rate of prejudgment interest at nine percent. N.Y. C.P.L.R. § 5004.
When calculating the interest due, it "shall be computed from the earliest ascertainable date
the cause of action existed.” Id. § 5001(b).

“In New York, a breach of contract cause of action accrues at the time of the breach.” Ely-
Cruikshank Co. v. Bank of Montreal, 81 N.Y.2d 399, 402, 615 N.E.2d 985, 599 N.Y.S.2d
501 (1993) (citations omitted).

"New York law provides that "[i]nterest shall be recovered upon a sum awarded because of a
breach of performance of a contract,” N.Y. C.P.L.R. § 5001(a), and that interest is to be
computed "from the earliest date the cause of action existed,” N.Y. C.P.L.R. § 5001(b), at the
rate of nine percent per annum, N.Y. C.P.L.R. § 5004. Accordingly, Plaintiffs are entitled to
prejudgment interest on the installments that were not timely paid." Kasperek v. City Wire

Works, Inc., No. 03 CV 3986 (RML), 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 19803, at *8 (E.D.N.Y. Mar.

12, 2009).
ThiSecondrd Count
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e
Misleading Representations Regarding Amount of Debt
Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs

numbered “1” through “41” herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set

forth at length herein.

15 U.S.C. § 1692¢ provides:
A debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means
in connection with the collection of any debt. Without limiting the general application of
the foregoing, the following conduct is a violation of this section:

(2) The false representation of —

the character, amount, or legal status of any debt; or
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(10) The use of any false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to
collect any debt or to obtain information concerning a consumer.

The “Balance as of 08-16-16" in this case was for an amount that included original principal
and contractual interest.

Collection notices that state only the “Balance as of 08-16-16,” but do not disclose that the
balance might increase due to interest “misleading” within the meaning of Section 1692e.
The Plaintiff was left uncertain as to whether the “Balance as of 08-16-16" was accruing
interest as there was no disclosure that indicated otherwise.

Plaintiff was left unsure whether the “Balance as of 08-16-16"” would accrue any type of
interest as there was no disclosure that indicated otherwise.

To the extent that the Creditor or Defendant intended to waive the automatically accrued and

accruing interest, it was required to disclose that in the most conspicuous of terms.

Defendant was required to include a disclosure that automatically accrued interest was accruing,

or in the alternative, the creditor has made an intentional decision to waive the automatically

accruing interest, yet it did not make any of those disclosures in violation of 1692e.

Failure to disclose such a waiver of the automatically accrued interest is in of itself deceptive
and “misleading” within the meaning of Section 1692e.

Defendant knew that the balance would increase due to interest.

“Applying these principles, we hold that Plaintiffs have stated a claim that the collection
notices at issue here are misleading within the meaning of Section 1692e... a consumer who
pays the "current balance” stated on the notice will not know whether the debt has been paid
in full.” Avila v. Riexinger & Assocs., LLC, Nos. 15-1584(L), 15-1597(Con), 2016 U.S. App.

LEXIS 5327, at *10-11 (2d Cir. Mar. 22, 2016)
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The Plaintiff and the unsophisticated consumer would be led to believe that the “Balance as
of 08-16-16" would remain as is and that paying the amount due would satisfy the debt
irrespective of when payment was remitted.

Absent a disclosure by the holder of the debt that the automatic interest is waived, the
Defendant and or the creditor could still seek the automatic interest . . . , or sell the
consumer’s debt to a third party, which itself could seek the interest and from the consumer.
Avila, at *10-11.

A debt-collector must disclose that interest is accruing, or in the alternative, it must disclose
any such waiver.

Waiver of interest even when made explicitly, has not prevented debt-collectors from
continuing to illegally charge the waived interest, at the bare minimum a debt collector must
make clear to the least sophisticated consumer that it intends to waive the interest.

A consumer who pays the “Balance as of 08-16-16" stated on the collection letter will be left
unsure whether the debt has been paid in full, as the Defendant could still collect on any
interest accumulated after the letters were sent but before the balance was paid.

Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692e(2) and 1692e(10) for misrepresenting the
amount of the debt owed by the Plaintiff.

Defendant's letter is in violation of 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692¢(2) and 1692¢(10) of the
FDCPA for the use of any false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to

collect any debt and for misrepresenting the amount of the debt owed by the Plaintiff.

10
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Fourth Count
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f
Unfair or Unconscionable Means to Collect Debt

60. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered “1” through “71” herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set
forth at length herein.

61. 15 U.S.C. § 1692f provides a debt collector may not use unfair or unconscionable means to
collect or attempt to collect any debt. 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1) prohibits the collection of any
amount, including any interest, fee, charge, or expense incidental to the debt, unless such
amount is expressly authorized by the agreement creating the debt or permitted by law.

62. U.S.C. 8§ 1692e prohibits a debt collector from using any false, deceptive, or misleading
representations or means in connection with the collection of any debt. 15 U.S.C.
81692¢(2)(A) prohibits the false representation of the character, amount, or legal status of any
debt. 15 U.S.C. 8 1692e(2)(B) prohibits the false representation of any services rendered or
compensation that may be lawfully received by any debt collector for the collection of a debt.

63. The Collection Letter states “Total Amount of Non-Interest Charges or Fees Accrued Since
Charge Off.”

64. The “Total Amount of Non-Interest Charges or Fees Accrued Since Charge Off” is listed as
“$0.00.”

65. The least sophisticated consumer would likely be deceived by the “Total Amount of Non-
Interest Charges or Fees Accrued Since Charge Off”” language into believing that Defendant
was legally entitled to collect non-interest charges or fees.

66. Defendant’s collection letter violated § 1692f and § 1692e by making a false representation
that it is entitled to receive compensation for payment via a “Cost Balance” thereby using

false, deceptive and misleading representations in its attempt to collect a debt.

11
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Plaintiff suffered injury in fact by being subjected to unfair and abusive practices of the
Defendant.

Plaintiff suffered actual harm by being the target of the Defendant's misleading debt
collection communications.

Defendant violated the Plaintiff's right not to be the target of misleading debt collection
communications.

Defendant violated the Plaintiff's right to a truthful and fair debt collection process.

Defendant used materially false, deceptive, misleading representations and means in its
attempted collection of Plaintiff's alleged debt.

Defendant's communications were designed to cause the debtor to suffer a harmful
disadvantage in charting a course of action in response to the Defendant's collection efforts.
The FDCPA ensures that consumers are fully and truthfully apprised of the facts and of their
rights, the act enables them to understand, make informed decisions about, and participate
fully and meaningfully in the debt collection process.

The purpose of the FDCPA is to provide information that helps consumers to choose
intelligently.

Defendant's false representations misled the Plaintiff in a manner that deprived him of his right
to enjoy these benefits; these materially misleading statements trigger liability under section
1692e of the Act.

These deceptive communications additionally violated the FDCPA since they frustrate the
consumer’s ability to intelligently choose his or her response.

Plaintiff seeks to end these violations of the FDCPA. Plaintiff has suffered damages

including but not limited to, fear, stress, mental anguish, emotional stress and acute

12
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embarrassment. Plaintiff and putative class members are entitled to preliminary and

permanent injunctive relief, including, declaratory relief, and damages.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant as follows:

(@)
(b)

(b)
(©)
(d)

(€)
(f)

Declaring that this action is properly maintainable as a Class Action and
certifying Plaintiff as Class representative, and Alan J. Sasson, Esq., as
Class Counsel,

Awarding Plaintiff and the Class statutory damages;

Awarding Plaintiff and the Class actual damages;

Awarding Plaintiff costs of this Action, including reasonable attorneys’
fees and expenses;

Awarding pre-judgment interest and post-judgment interest; and
Awarding Plaintiff and the Class such other and further relief as this Court

may deem just and proper.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
February 24, 2017

Respectfully submitted,

By:__/s/ Alan J. Sasson

Alan J. Sasson, Esq.

Law Office of Alan J. Sasson, P.C.
2687 Coney Island Avenue, 2nd Floor
Brooklyn, New York 11235

Phone:  (718) 339-0856

Facsimile: (347) 244-7178

Attorney for Plaintiff

13
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DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY
Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff hereby requests a

trial by jury on all issues so triable.

/sl Alan J. Sasson
Alan J. Sasson, Esq.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
February 24, 2017

14
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County?No

b) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? YES

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or

Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau

or Suffolk County?
(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
Yes |:| No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?
[J Yes (If yes, please explain) No

I certify the accuracy of all information provided above.

Signature: /sl Alan J. Sasson
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of New Y ork

TYRIA RICHARDSON, on behalf of herself and all
others similarly situated

)
)
)
)
Plaintiff(s) )
V. g Civil Action No.
NCB MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. )
)
)
)
)

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

NCB MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.
C/O CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
111 EIGHTH AVENUE

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10011

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are: | \\v 5EFICE OF ALAN J. SASSON, P.C.

2687 CONEY ISLAND AVENUE, SECOND FLOOR
BROOKLY, NEW YORK 11235

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

DOUGLAS C. PALMER
CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(A | served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
3 | returned the summons unexecuted because por
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AGCOUNT INFGRUIATION

For Payment and Correspondence: Y
NCB Management Services Inc. Name: Tyria Richardson
PO Box 1099 : Original Creditor : Webbank
Langhorne, PA 19047 Acct : XKXXXXXXXXXX7771
Current Creditor: Jefferson Capital Systems, LLC

|IIIlIlHlllllﬂl|||IIIII1IIHIIIHIIIIHIIIIIHIIIIIH. a NCB File? GEER0S16
884 01 Balance : $2,051.32 as of 08-16-2016

' _ Amount Of Payment Enclosed $__

/
D Complete the form on the reverse side to set up
electronic payment(s)

Tyria Richardson |
NCB Management Services, Inc.
PO Box 1099

Langhorne, PA 19047

Please mail payment and the top portion in the enclosed sell-addres‘sed envelope to ensure proper credit.

To make your payment onling, please visit us at www.ncbi.com.

55 Fvices (Original Creditor: Webbank )
Fincorporated Acct# : XXXXXXXXXXXX7771

Ronmesrins Mamngamant. Current Creditor : Jefferson Capital Systems, LLC
NCB File# Slllllil0816

| Balance : $2,051.32 as of 08-16-2016

_J
( Charge-Off Balance: $2,051.32 )
Total Payments Since Account Charge Off: $0.00.
. Total Amount of Interest Accrued Since Charge Off $0 00
Date: 08-16-2016 \_Total Amount of Non-Interest Charges or Fees Accrued Since Charge Off: $0. 00 )

CNew information On Your Account>

Dear Tyria Richardson,

Your lefferson Capital Systams, LLC account balance-ha

collection. Now that your account is with us, you may be sligible for payment optlons that
weren't available before.

Please give us a call at 855-731-9297 to discuss your options. We have experiencle
helping others in similar situations. |f you wish to make a payment by mail, please use the
enclosed self-addressed envelope, and put your file number in the imemo portion of your
check to ensure proper credit to your account. You can also pay online at www.ncbi.com.
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ﬂJnless you notify this office within 30 days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of

this debt or any portion thereof, this office will assume this debt is valid. "If you notify this office in
writing within 30 days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of this debt or any
portion thereof, this office will obtain verification of the debt or obtain a copy of a judgment, if any,
and mail you a copy of such judgment or verification. If you request this office in writing within 30
days after receiving this notice, this office will provide you with the name and address of the original
creditor, if different from the current creditor. This communication is from a debt collector. The

purpose of this letter is to collect a debt. Any information obtained will be used for that purpose.

k Please see reverse side for important information.

Hours: Mop-Thur (9AM-9PM) Fri (9AM-6PM) Sat (9AM-*I::Q\Mi)z;gggstem Time

- Sincerely,

Janeth Stier
855-‘731-9297 (Toll Free)
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